








THE HISTORY OF
THE LUTHERAN CHURCH OF OUR SAVIOR

The Congregation To-Day

The members of Our Saviour’s recognize the centrality of
the Word and the Sacraments in the nourishment of the
Church. We therefore stress the importance of Christian
education and worship. With the help of the new Lutheran
Book of Worship, the choirs, the lay assistants, the lectors,
greeters, ushers and altar servers, the organist, the custo-
dians, the worship sub-committee of the Parish Life Commit-
tee and the ladies who bake bread for the Lord’s Supper, care
for the altar, and do a variety of other works of love, much
care and planning are invested in our worship together. The
Services are a high priority with the pastors as well. We trust
that members will not lightly by-pass these opportunities to
enrich and express their faith. Prodded by the uncertainties of
our times into digging deeper into the vast store-houses of
God’s Grace, and in obedience to the call of our Church for
more frequent celebrations of the Eucharist, the congrégation
decided at its annual meeting in January, that it would make
the Lord’s Supper available to its people every Sunday begin-
ning with Easter Sunday, 1984. In the area of Christian
Education, classes from pre-school to a. It are provided by
the Sunday Church School under the guidance of Norma
Nuhn, Superintendent. Catechetical classes for grades 8 and 9
are taught by the pastors. Training for altar servers and Early
Communion classes are scheduled as needed.

The outreach of the congregation is significant. We can be
proud of the services rendered through the Lutheran Nursing
Home and the Seven Stars. It was instrumental in the
development of Christ the King, Sauble Beach, Faith
Lutheran Church, Port Elgin, and the Georgian Bay
Lutheran Clustre (Lutheranch). In addition, the congregation
had solidly supported Participation Lodge which celebrated
Grand Opening on June 12, 1982, with the Dubrick Memorial
Chapel and Involvement Centre, donated by Lutherans,
dedicated on June 20, 1982, by Bishop William Huras.
Thanks to the leadership of the Robinsons, the Cub and
Scout groups sponsored by Our Saviour’s have programs that
are enviable. The pastors are active in Cluster, synodical, and
community affairs. The sponsorship of a refugee family is
history with pleasant memories.

A peak at the proverbial crystal ball shows that Our
Saviour’s future will require dedicated effort on the part of
many to maintain present ministries in a manner that is wor-
thy of those who name the name of Christ. Two new
possibilities are interesting to ponder. One is in the area of
youth ministry, an area where we are definitely deficient as
identified again in a recent survey. A second is the provision
of the other forms of residential care for older people.

Before the Beginning

Lutheran work began in Owen Sound in 1925 through the
efforts of the Rev. J. L. Kirchofer, then pastor of St. Peter’s
Lutheran Church, Wiarton, a congregation organized in
1889. The Historical Review, published by St. Peter’s for its

85th anniversary, states ‘‘the first official mentioning of a
Lutheran group in Owen Sound was at the Church Council
meeting on April 2, 1925.”

After preliminary meetings earlier in 1925, an organiza-
tional meeting was held on October 18, 1925. A congregation,
named ¢‘St. Paul’s Lutheran Church’’, was organized and a
church council elected. Twenty-one persons were present. In
spite of the efforts of Pastor Kirchofer, who also organized a
Sunday School and a Confirmation Class, and of his suc-
cessor, Pastor E. Mangelson, the congregation floundered.
The Minute Book of this group closes with a last meeting on
June 22, 1928, and on this sad note ‘‘After considerable
discussion in regards to the prospects of the Lutheran con-
gregation in Owen Sound and in view of the decrease in
membership, it was unanimously decided to discontinue and
the pastor was instructed to notify officials to that effect’’.

Organizing a congregation is no small matter. Recognizing
the need for a full-time effort, the Board of American Mis-
sions of the United Lutheran Church in America sent a man
into the field. He was a new Seminary graduate, the Rev.
George Durst, who began his work in Owen Sound in 1932.
The Lutheran Church of Our Saviour was organized and
chartered on Sunday, May 21, 1934.

At the Beginning

By charter Sunday (May 21, 1934), Pastor G. F. Durst had
gathered together 36 confirmed members. They were: Miss
Elizabeth Mink, Mr. & Mrs. John Mink, Miss Edna Mink,
Mrs. Edward Taylor, Mr. & Mrs. Theophiel Binkley, Mr. &
Mrs. Nelson Kreutzkamp, Mr. & Mrs. James Halliday, Mr. &
Mrs. Charles Brown, Miss Mildred Sprung, Mr. & Mrs.
Theodore Mannerow, Miss Mitzi Dengel, Mr. Conrad
Kessler, Mr. & Mrs. Herbert Metzger, Mr. & Mrs. Wm.
Legate, Miss Gertrude Crigger, Miss Irene Crigger, Mr. &
Mrs. Wilfred Litt, Mrs. Wm. Clark, Mr. & Mrs. Henry
Henkel, Mr. & Mrs. Edward Henkel, Adolf Henkel, Fred
Henkel, and Luella Liebold.

Of the original 36, 6 are still members of Our Saviour’s.
They are: Mr. & Mrs. Theodore Mannerow, Mrs. Irene (Crig-
ger) Mannerow, Mrs. Wm. Legate, and Mr. & Mrs. Herbert
Metzger.

The first officers of the congregation were: President, Rev.
George Durst; Vice-president, Mr. Theodore Mannerow;
Secretary, Mr. Theophiel Binkley; Treasurer, Mr. Herbert
Metzger; Benevolence treasurer, Mr. Nelson Kreutzkamp;
Financial secretary, Mr. James Halliday.

Probably the charter members had reservations as to what
would become of the fledgling congregation. Already then
not all were active. Doubts surely came to mind when the of-
fering plate yielded insufficient funds to pay the $3.00 weekly
rental. It is to be expected that having a ‘“‘German Church”’
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Normanby, about 4 miles north. The first church, a modest frame chapel, was dedicated during his pastorate in 1865, and
known as St. James’, Normanby. Pastor Behren’s pastorate ended with his death within 3 years. The congregation has the
distinction of being the oldest of the Lutheran churches of Grey and Bruce. Regrettably, during the next pastorate, that of F.
Ehinger, who also served both St. James’ and St. Paul’s, a sad page in the history of the congregation was written. A storm
broke loose concerning the deed of the church property; all attempts at reconciliation failed and the congregation split. The
majority retained possession of the church but shifted it several feet farther north, on a technicality of law, while the minority
erected a new church, also St. James’, just a short distance away. Eventually, the original congregation became a member of
the Missouri Synod, while the second St. James’, organized in 1864, has continued in a parish arrangement with St. Paul’s to
the present day. During Ehinger’s pastorate at St. James’ and St. Paul’s, and also at St. Johns’ in Carrick, Zion congregation
in Ayton (1868) and St. Peter’s in Neustadt (1869) were organized.

Reference has already been made to St. Paul’s, Normanby and to its Pastor, Christian Behrens. Without stretching the truth,
it may be said that this congregation was a kind of mother church, and its Pastor, Behrens, the patriarch or father of
Lutheranism in Grey County and in Brant and Carrick Townships of Bruce County.

The beginnings of St. Paul’s, Normanby, on the 12th. Concession south of Neustadt, date back to 1859, when the Lutheran
people of the district petitioned the more southern churches for a Pastor who would nourish their spiritual appetites as they
themselves attacked the virgin forests, hewed logs into timber for houses and barns, planted their precious seeds and establish-
ed themselves as ‘‘men of the soil’’. A Pastor was sent in the person of Charles Rechenberg, who conducted the first service of
worship on Sept. 25, 1859, and organized St. Paul’s congregation with 37 members, most of them heads of families. It is
recorded that the offering received at the first service was $1.15 - a mere pittance today, but undoubtedly involving many
sacrificial “‘mites’’ of those pioneer days. =

The first resident Pastor was Christian Behrens, who served the congregation from Nov. 1861 to Sept. 1868. Behrens was
born in Hanover, Germany, in 1817. He attended the University of Berlin and was prepared for foreign mission work in the
Gossner Mission. For 11 years, he served as a medical missionary in India. The Sepoy rebellion forced him to flee from India
and, in doing so, he suffered an injury i.om which he never fully recovered. Upon his return to Germany, he was commission-
ed for work in Canada, beginning his labours in the Normanby-Carrick area. He proved to be a zealous missionary, travelling
from place to place on horseback. He carried his Bible and a medical case, for he was not only the first resident Pastor, but
also the first medical doctor in the district. Often, when he returned from his extended trips, he would find many sick folk
waiting for him at the log cabin of Jacob Weber where he first made his home. Besides serving St. Paul’s, Normanby and being
the area doctor, he served St. John’s Carrick, St. Peter’s in Brant, and he organized St. James’, Normanby in 1864, St. Peter’s
in Sullivan in 1865 and also served the Lutherans in Hanover. His large parish of 662 souls in six congregations, necessitated
many miles of travel over poor roads. The large parish was divided in 1867,but he continued to serve in Normanby and Car-
rick until his death on Oct. 14. 1868. The esteem in which he was held was manifested by the attendance of over 1000 people at
his funeral, this at a time before telegraph or telephone could give immediate announcement. In 1937, a cairn, situated in front
of St. Paul’s church, Normanby, directly across from the cemetery where he was buried, was erected to his memory.

A mulititude of names inscribed on the pages of history could be referred to at this point, but these are beyond the scope of
this presentation. One among the many who served congregations in Grey and Bruce was the Rev. Ernest Neuduerffer who
served a Lutheran congregation at Santa Leopoldina in Brazil. In 1887, he accepted a Call to the Normanby-Carrick Parish
where he laboured for 28 years. His last 5 years of active service were as Pastor of St. John’s, Ayton, which he had organized
in 1890. I was one of the last to be baptized prior to his retirement, and my Baptismal certificate bears his signature. He died in
Moorsetown, N.J. in 1936 at the age of 87. Two of his sons, Ernest and August, served for many years at Rajahmundry, on the
India Mission Field. The son of August Neuduerffer, Frederick, was a classmate at college and Seminary in Waterloo, and a
fellow ordinand on June 7 in 1942. He has continued the missionary traditions of his family by serving as Mission Secretary

. first for India and then for Malaysia up to the present.

Congregations were organized in Hanover, First St. Matthew’s in 1862 and St. Matthews in 1873. There were some of the
ramifications of membership in various Lutheran Synods which I cannot detail, but prominent among the Pastoral names of
the two congregations are Mackensen, Denef, Kuder and Tweitmeyer.

In 1858 and 59 a number of families from West Prussia and Muhlenberg, who had previously resided near Preston, Ontario,
came to Sullivan Township. One of the leaders, John Mannerow, sent a letter to Rev. Wurster in Preston, asking to be sup-
plied with a Lutheran Pastor. In the spring of 1862, Christian Behrens of Normanby township came on horseback to conduct
the first Lutheran service at the h ome of Ernest Leuben. He served them until 1865, in which year the congregation was
organized and a log church was built. The present stone edifice, 3 miles south of Desboro, was erected in 1881. The congrega-
tion celebrated a century of faith in the restored church in 1981. A daughter congregation of St. Peter’s in Sullivan, St. James’
in Williamsford, was organized in 1888. A church was erected and the congregation has been served by Pastors residing in
Desboro. A second congregation, St. John’s in Desboro, was organized in 1900. It had a daughter congregation, organized in
1921 as St. Paul’s, in Marmion. It had been meeting since 1925 in the former Sharon Methodist church, left vacant after
church union had been effected. The congregation was recently merged with St. John’s.
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